LY o
(o g
IS )
[ %
hewetide
W |
o 2y alos &

KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

GENERAL SESSION AGENDA
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ REGULAR MEETING
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2024, 10:00 A.M.

1. STANDING REPORT(S)

A. REPORT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CEO GAURAV VASISHT

B. REPORT OF ACTING GENERAL ATTORNEY DAVID WERTHEIM

2. REPORT OF BOARD STANDING COMMITTEE(S)

A. BUDGET & AUDIT COMMITTEE: COMMISSIONER THOMAS

1) 2"° QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT
BUSINESS OPERATIONS COMMITTEE: COMMISSIONER KATHURIA
GOVERNANCE & LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE: COMMISSIONER MELVIN

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE: CHAIRMAN KENNETH THEOBALDS

m o o W

PROPERTY & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE: COMMISSIONER KESSLER

3. CONSENT AGENDA

A. TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE JUNE 25, 2024 BOARD MEETING

B. TO ACCEPT THE WRITTEN REPORTS AS SUBMITTED

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF NECESSARY)

5. PRESENTATION

A. RESOLUTION: SAFETY GROUP GUIDELINES

6. ADJOURN

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com



August 2024
77\

AN e 1 ™=



Workers’
Compensation Fund

Q2 2024 Results

Preliminary & Unaudited



Workers’ Compensation Fund
Q2 2024 Overview — Statutory Basis

* Earned premium decreased $3.7 million or 0.4% compared to 2023

e 2024 premium decrease is due to reduced loss costs and audit premium, offset by increased payrolls.

« The combined ratio with dividends decreased 8.0 points compared to 2023
» Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred decreased $81 million in 2024.
» Dividends paid YTD were $105.9 million in 2023 and $88.2 million in 2024.

* Net investment income ratio (before realized gains) increased 4.4 points compared to 2023
e The increase was mainly due to interest rates on new money.

 Bad Debt Expense increased to $41.9 million from $26.4 million in 2023
*  The bad debt expense increased due to higher billed premiums in 2024 and review of uncollectible accounts.

* Realized Gains were $174.7 million, up from $54.9 million in 2023

e 2024 realized gains included gains on sales of common stock of $193.5 million, offset by realized losses on bond sales
of $(18.8) million.

« Net income was $520.7 million, reflecting an increase of $209.4 million compared to 2023

e The increase from 2023 is a result of improved underwriting results, increased investment income and higher net
realized gains.

AN
NYSIF



Workers’ Compensation Fund
Statutory Basis Results

($ in millions) Preliminary and unaudited
2"d Quarter

YTD YTD Percent/Point
2023 2024 Increase/
(Decrease)

| Net Written Premium $852.8 $856.4 0.4% |

| Net Earned Premium $848.3 $844.6 (0.4%) |
Combined Ratio 91.3% 82.7% (8.6)
Dividend Ratio 12.1% 12.6% 0.6

| Combined Ratio w/Dividends 103.4% 95.3% 8.0) |
Underwriting Margin (1-Combined Ratio w/Dividends) (3.4%) 4.7% 8.0
Net Investment Income Ratio (1) 35.3% 39.7% 4.4

| Current Year Operating Margin (2) 31.9% 44.4% 12.5 |
Bad Debt Expense (26.4) (41.9) (15.4)
Realized Gains/(Losses) 54.9 174.7 119.8

[ Net Income $311.3 $520.7 $209.4 |
Dividends Paid $105.9 $88.2 ($17.7)

(1) Excluding realized gains/losses.
(2) Current year operating margin = combined ratio w/ dividends + net investment income ratio (per AM Best which excludes realized gains
(losses) and other income (expenses).

AN
NYSIF



Disability Benefits
Fund

Q2 2024 Results

Preliminary & Unaudited



Disability Benefits Fund
Q2 2024 Overview — Statutory Basis

 Earned premium increased slightly by $2 million or 3.5% compared to 2023

« The combined ratio increased by 20.7 points compared to 2023
e Loss and loss adjustment expenses increased by $12 million in 2024 vs. 2023 due to a lower than expected

PFL risk pool payment in 2023.
» The PFL risk pool payment of $15.9 million was paid in July 2024.

« Netincome was $21.2 million, reflecting a decrease of $8.5 million or 28.4% compared to 2023

» Net income was reduced by the decrease in PFL rates and the increase in the PFL risk adjustment pool liability
noted above, offset by increased investment income.

AN
NYSIF



Disability Benefits Fund
Statutory Basis Results

($ in millions) Preliminary and unaudited

2nd Quarter

YTD YTD Percent/Point
Increase/
2023 2024 (Decrease)

[ Net Written Premium $49.4 $45.2 (8.6%) |
[ Net Earned Premium $58.2 $60.2 3.5% |
Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Ratio 56.4% 74.9% 18.5
Underwriting Expense Ratio 6.3% 8.5% 2.1
[ Combined Ratio 62.7% 83.4% 20.7 |
Underwriting Margin (1-Combined Ratio) 37.3% 16.6% (20.7)
Net Investment Income Ratio 11.8% 14.9% 3.0
[ current Year Operating Margin (1) 49.1% 31.5% 17.6) |
[ Net Income $29.7 $21.2 ($8.5) |

(1) Current year operating margin = combined ratio w/ dividends + net investment income ratio (per AM Best which excludes realized gains
(losses) and other income (expenses).
(2) Amounts may not foot due to rounding.

AN
NYSIF



SRPROPOSED MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF THE STATE INSURANCE FUND
HELD ON TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2024 AT 2:00 P.M.
AT 199 CHURCH STREET, 12 FLOOR BOARDROOM, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10007;
8 CORPORATE CENTER DRIVE, MELVILLE, NY 11747; and
100 CHESTNUT STREET, ROCHESTER, NEW YORK 14604

Board Executive Staff
Attendance — New York City Gaurav Vasisht, Executive Director & CEO?
Kenneth Theobalds, Chair Peter Cusick, Chief Operating Officer, Insurance
Sean Graham? Operations
Navneet Kathuria Chad Loshbaugh, Chief Operations Officer, Business
David Ourlicht Operations
Alexis Thomas David Wertheim, Acting General Attorney
William Gratrix, Chief Financial Officer
Attendance — Rochester Gregory Francis, Chief Investment Officer

Dennis Kessler

Additional Staff & Guest(s)
Attendance — Melville Michael Totaro, Assistant Secretary to the Board of
Charles MacLeod Commissioners

Al Angelo, Director of Administration

Absent

Eric Dinallo

Louis Roberti

Scott Melvin, ex officio

Chair Theobalds presided. A guorum was announced and maintained throughout.

The Chair began by introducing Governor Hochul's recent appointments to the Board of
Commissioners: Eric Dinallo and David Ourlicht. Commissioner Dinallo is a partner at Debevoise &
Plimpton LLP and previously served as New York Superintendent of Insurance. Commissioner Ourlicht
is returning to NYSIF's Board after serving on it from 2008 to 2018. He is currently Managing Directo &
Special Advisor to the Chair at GAMCO Asset Management.

In addition, Chair Theobalds announced the departure of two longstanding members of the Board of
Commissioners, Charles MacLeod and Louis Roberti. Chair was saddened to see Commissioner

MacLeod’s departure, who was a hardworking, humble, and collegial Commissioner. The Chair noted

1 Commissioner Graham arrived during Executive Session.
2Executive Director Gaurav Vasisht left during Executive Session



what a pleasure it was to serve with him on the Property & Administrative Services Committee. Further,

his marketing talents were instrumental to NYSIF’s rebranding.

Commissioner MacLeod stated it was a great pleasure and honor to serve on the Board for the last 10
years. He thanked NYSIF's staff for the professionalism and attention to quality, and he thanked his

fellow Board members for their help in guiding NYSIF. He said he will miss everyone.

Chair Theobalds also was saddened by Commissioner Roberti's retirement from the Board.
Commissioner Roberti, Chair Theobalds said, was a solid, dependable and personable Commissioner; it

was always a pleasure to serve alongside him.

1. Report of Executive Director & CEO
Executive Director & CEO Gaurav Vasisht began his remarks by welcoming Commissioners Dinallo
and Ourlicht. He thanked Commissioners MacLeod and Roberti for their tenure and service on the
Board and to NYSIF. He stated it was a pleasure to work with them both and wished them the

best in their future endeavors.

He then reported on his testimony before the Senate Labor Committee on May 15, 2024
concerning the Workers’ Compensation System. He then stated that NYSIF released a paper
entitled, “Insurance As a Catalyst to Drive Climate Action,” which discussed a pilot program for
hospitals to help them reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Finally, on a personal note, he thanked
Governor Kathy Hochul for appointing him to the State’s inaugural Asian American and Pacific

Islander Commission.

2. Report of Acting General Attorney
Acting General Attorney David Wertheim stated that he had a matter to discuss in Executive

Session, as it pertained to legal advice, subject to a motion to enter Executive Session.

3. Report(s) of Standing Committees

Investment Committee

Chair Theobalds reported that the Investment Committee met on June 20, 2024. The Committee

received the monthly compliance report. There were no compliance issues to report. He noted



that there is a salary resolution to discuss in Executive Session, subject to a motion to enter

Executive Session.

Motion to Accept Consent Agenda

Upon a motion by Commissioner MacLeod, duly seconded by Commissioner Thomas, the Board
unanimously voted to accept the minutes of the May 15, 2024, Board meeting and have them
filed as the official minutes of the Board, as well as to accept the written reports as submitted.
The vote: Commissioner Kathuria — yes; Commissioner MacLeod — yes; Commissioner Kessler —

yes; Commissioner Thomas — yes; Commissioner Ourlicht — yes; Chair Theobalds — yes.

Executive Session

Upon a motion by Commissioner Kathuria, duly seconded by Commissioner Ourlicht, the Board
unanimously voted to enter Executive Session for a discussion leading to the appointment and
employment of a particular person and for legal advice. The vote: Commissioner Kathuria — yes;
Commissioner MacLeod — yes; Commissioner Kessler — yes; Commissioner Thomas — yes;

Commissioner Ourlicht — yes; Chair Theobalds — yes.

Report of Executive Session

Assistant Secretary Michael Totaro reported the following actions were taken in Executive Session:

Upon a motion by Commissioner Graham, duly seconded by Commissioner MacLeod, the Board
voted to approve and authorize the salary for the following individual in accordance with the
memorandum submitted to the Board on June 25, 2024: Rajith Sebastian, Head of ESG and
Sustainable Investing. The vote: Commissioner Kathuria — yes; Commissioner MacLeod — yes;
Commissioner Kessler — yes; Commissioner Thomas — yes; Commissioner Graham - vyes;

Commissioner Ourlicht — abstain; Chair Theobalds — yes.

Assistant Secretary Totaro then announced that the next Board of Commissioners regular monthly

meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, July 17, 2024, at 10:00 a.m.

Adjournment of Meeting



Upon a motion by Commissioner Thomas, duly seconded by Commissioner Kathuria, the Board
unanimously voted to adjourn the June 25" regular monthly meeting of the Board of
Commissioners. The vote: Commissioner Kathuria — yes; Commissioner MacLeod — yes;
Commissioner Kessler — yes; Commissioner Thomas — yes; Commissioner Graham — yes;

Commissioner Ourlicht — yes; Chair Theobalds — yes.

Respectfully Submitted,

Michael Totaro, Assistant Secretary



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

RESOLUTION

The following is a resolution considered by the Board of Commissioners of the State Insurance
Fund at a meeting held on Wednesday, September 18, 2024. A quorum was present throughout:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners hereby approves and adopts the NYSIF
“Operating Guidelines for Trade Association Groups” and “Operating Guidelines for Trade
Groups” as submitted to the Board of Commissioners on September 18, 2024.

Commissioner provided the motion to approve
Commissioner seconded the motion
YES NO ABSTAIN

Commissioner Delgado

Commissioner Kathuria

Commissioner Kessler

Commissioner Melvin

Commissioner Thomas

Commissioner Graham

Commissioner Ourlicht

Commissioner Dinallo

Chairman Theobalds

Michael Totaro
Assistant Secretary

*This proposed resolution has not been acted upon. The proposed motion is being made available
pursuant to the Open Meetings Law 8103(e)

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



New York State Insurance Fund
Office of General Counsel

Operating Guidelines
for
Trade Association Groups

Page 1 of 16



VI.

Introduction

A.
B.

Obijectives
Identification

General Membership

moowz»

Eligibility
Term of Membership

Table of Contents

Transfer between Safety Groups

Removal or Withdrawal
Obligations of Membership

Meetings of the General Membership

moowy

Notice to NYSIF

Annual Meeting
Scheduling

Attendance and Voting
Minutes and Vote Record

Executive Committee

@mMmoom >

Purpose and Powers
Composition

Positions

Term

Vacancies

Meetings

Safety Advisory Committee

Group Manager

Gmmo o w>»

Purpose

Quialifications and Approval
Term

Duties

Payment for Services
Group Expenses

Removal

General Provisions

OO w>»

Dividends
Fraud
Discontinuance
Amendments

Page 2 of 16

0O ~N~NO O (e)} a b~ b oww

(e}

11

11
11
12
12
14
14
14

14

14
15
15
15



SECTION I: INTRODUCTION

The adoption of the instant “Operating Guidelines” by the Board of Commissioners of the New York State
Insurance Fund (herein referred to as “NYSIF”) on September 18, 2024, as effective on October 1, 2024,
serves to revoke and supersede any and all prior “Rules and Regulations,” together with any and all
previously approved amendments, governing the operations of Safety Groups organized and operating
pursuant to Workers Compensation Law §89, §90, and §91 and 12 NYCRR 8451.1 et seq.

A. Objectives, as a Safety Group

This Trade Association Group, a form of Safety Group authorized pursuant to 12 NYCRR 8451.2(a)(3),
exists to continuously encourage the active prevention of workplace accidents and occupational
diseases, the formulation of sound safety programs, the promotion of improvements in medical care
for injured employees, and the reduction of the insurance costs borne by its individual members.

Incidental and critical to these purposes is the ongoing encouragement of members to assist NYSIF in
the timely submission and proper handling of claims made against an individual policy, including the
timely submission of accurate payroll information.

B. Identification

At the time of adoption, NYSIF has assigned Group Number [Insert Group No.] to the instant Trade
Association Group (herein referred to as the “Group”). In all communications and dealings with NYSIF
concerning Group operations, members and Group Managers are advised to reference the Group using
this number.

The Trade Association Group’s formal name is [Insert Group Name here], established on [Insert Date
of Establishment].

SECTION 11: GENERAL MEMBERSHIP
A. Eligibility

In accordance with 12 NYCRR 8§451.3(b), all policyholders who are and continue to be regular bona
fide dues-paying members of the [Insert Name of duly established Industrial Trade Association] who
are engaged in the following type(s) of employment, and whose compensation insurance experience
records meet the approval of NYSIF and the Group’s Executive Committee, shall be considered eligible
for membership within the Group.

Only those classifications, which apply in whole or in part to the industry, are to be included within the
instant Group and one of such authorized classifications must be the governing classification for a risk
to become eligible for membership:

Class Code: Description:

[XXXX] [Complete before final adoption]
[XXXX] [Complete before final adoption]
[XXXX] [Complete before final adoption]

B. Term of Membership
NYSIF reserves the right to deny the application of a prospective Group member, for any reason. No

prospective member shall be allowed to join the Group without the express consent and approval of
NYSIF.

Page 3 of 16



Once approved, said membership shall be continuous from policy year to policy year, until a risk either
withdraws or is removed, by either the Executive Committee!, subject to NYSIF's approval, or NYSIF
itself.

C. Transfer between Safety Groups

An eligible risk may transfer from the General Group to this Trade Association Group only upon its
anniversary date and only if it provides timely notice to both the Group Manager and NYSIF. Notice is
timely if it is received by both the Group Manager? and NYSIF no later than thirty (30) days prior to its
anniversary date. However, no risk/policy may be transferred directly from any NYSIF Safety Group to
another NYSIF Safety Group unless NYSIF has covered such policy in its General Group for a minimum
of two (2) years.

D. Removal or Withdrawal

There are certain circumstances whereby an individual member may choose to leave the Group, may
be asked by the Executive Committee to leave the Group, subject to NYSIF's approval, and/or may be
required by NYSIF to leave the Group:

1. By Decision of the Individual Member:

a. Any member may choose to withdraw from the Group, effective the subsequent Group
anniversary date, if they provide a “Notice of Intent to Withdraw” to both the Group
Manager and NYSIF, no later than thirty (30) days prior to the Group’s anniversary
date. A member may also be allowed to withdraw, at any time, with the consent and
approval of NYSIF.

b. By Cancellation of Insurance: an individual risk’s termination of insurance coverage
with NYSIF shall also operate to terminate any and all benefits that would otherwise
accrue by virtue of membership within this Group, except that such risk may be entitled
to participate and/or receive any dividend that may be declared for the last period of
its active membership within the Group or other such unpaid periods, in proportion to
the earned premium of the member for such period(s).

The cancellation of insurance during the General Group Policy period shall render such
risk ineligible for membership in a Safety Group until after the lapsing of the General
Group Policy renewal date following the date of cancellation.

2. By the Executive Committee: the Executive Committee, in consultation with or upon
recommendation of its Group Manager, may decide to seek the exclusion and removal of any
member from continued membership, at the anniversary date of the group, for failure to
comply with group rules, and/or a failure to maintain membership in the duly established
Industrial Trade Association.

Once the Executive Committee makes this decision, it is then responsible for transmitting to
both the risk and NYSIF, a “Notice of Intent to Discontinue Membership”, including the
reason(s) in support of the decision, no later than thirty (30) days prior to the anniversary date
of the Group. The approval of the discontinuance of membership remains in the sole discretion
of NYSIF.

1 See Section IV: “Executive Committee”
2 See Section V: “Group Manager”

Page 4 of 16



3. By NYSIF: if, in NYSIF's opinion, an individual risk’s continued membership within the Group
would not serve the basic objectives for which the Group is formed, then NYSIF may remove
the member from the Group.

E. Obligations of Membership

Membership in the instant Trade Association Group is voluntary. However, if approved for membership,
an individual risk agrees to abide by these operating guidelines, together with:

1. Annual Meeting

Each Group member shall endeavor to have an authorized representative present at the Group’s
Annual Meeting. If no person directly associated with the member is available to attend, the
member is then responsible for arranging for a proxy to attend and vote in their stead. This
includes executing a valid “Voting Proxy” as defined in Section 111(D) of these Guidelines and
submitting such proxy to the Group Manager no later than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled
meeting.

2. Payroll Records and Audits

Each Group member shall timely and promptly transmit accurate payroll information to the Group
Manager and/or NYSIF and actively participate in all audits required by NYSIF. The member shall
also keep and maintain a complete record of their payroll expenses, properly separated by
classification. NYSIF, and its authorized representatives, shall be permitted to examine an
individual member’s books, vouchers, contracts, documents, and records of any and every kind,
which show or tend to show the premium due to insure the risk.

If a member fails to timely cooperate with either a NYSIF audit or payroll verification request and/or
fails to have an audit completed within eighteen (18) months from the end of a policy period, the
member may be liable to forfeit its dividend for an estimated policy period and/or removal from
the Group, subject to NYSIF's discretion.

3. Claims and Medical Services

Each member shall:
a. Report, promptly, all instances of accidents and occupational diseases as soon as is
practicable, but not later than ten (10) days after their occurrence, in accordance with

applicable provisions of the NYS Workers’ Compensation Law. Such reporting shall occur
in a manner and method prescribed by NYSIF; and

b. Keep and maintain a record of all injuries sustained by their employees in the course of
their employment. Such record shall include the name of the injured employee, their
occupation/title, a list of duties, physical requirements of the job (if any), the time, date,
and place/location of injury, a description of the occurrence, a list of eyewitnesses, the
name of the employee’s direct supervisor, treatment rendered, and a log of lost time
attributed to the accident; and

c. Consult, with the Group Manager and/or NYSIF Claims Department staff, on matters
relating to all accidents, occupational diseases, medical care, treatment, claims handling
and investigatory matters; and

d. Notify, promptly, the Group Manager and/or NYSIF Claims Department staff of an
employee’s lost time attributable to either an accident or an occupational disease; and

Page 5 of 16



e. Notify, promptly, the Group Manager and/or NYSIF Claims Department staff when said
employee returns to work and timely file corresponding paperwork; and

f. Provide efficient and adequate medical treatment and care to injured employees within
the parameters set forth under Workers’ Compensation Law §13; and

g. Transmit, promptly, all medical bills to NYSIF Claims Department staff, together with
any information or communication, whether written or oral, received from an employee
who has filed a claim, their physician, their attorney, or any other person; and

h. Cooperate in the investigation of any accident, immediately after its occurrence and
throughout the duration of any resulting Claim, to determine the cause of the accident and
the prevention of recurrence.

4. Accident Prevention Program(s)

Each member of the Group shall actively participate in the Group Manager's and/or NYSIF's
Accident Prevention Program(s). Additionally, members are responsible for:

a. Establishing and maintaining, at individual worksites, a comprehensive and effective
safety program for the education of all employees, inclusive of supervisors and staff,
in safe practices, with particular attention paid to new employees; and

b. When practicable, establishing, appointing, and maintaining a Safety Committee,
composed of management, superintendent(s), foreperson(s), and responsible
employees for the purposes of holding regular safety meetings and formulating rules
and regulations peculiar to the Business, as insured, for the prevention of accidents
and the minimization of occupational disease hazards; and

c. Providing and allowing access to the Business’ premises to NYSIF Representatives and
Staff, at any time during business hours, for the purpose of making inspections,
conducting investigations, and providing recommendations for the elimination of
accidents and the minimization of occupational disease hazards; and

d. Availing themselves of the fullest use of NYSIF facilities, programs, and services in
accident prevention and safety work and taking prompt action on all recommendations
made by the Group Manager, the Executive Committee, Safety Advisory sub-
Committee and/or NYSIF for correcting unsafe conditions.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, each group member remains responsible for compliance
with all Federal, State, and Local Safety Laws, Rules, and Regulations, as applicable.

SECTION 111: MEETINGS OF THE GENERAL MEMBERSHIP

A. Notice to NYSIF

NYSIF has the right to be represented at all meetings of the Group. Therefore, the Group Manager
shall provide to NYSIF's Director of Underwriting, or their designee, a minimum of (20) days advance
written notice of all meetings of the Trade Association Group, including all meetings of its Executive
Committee and any of its sub-Committee(s).

B. Annual Meeting

The General Membership shall convene at least once per policy year for the purpose of transacting the
business of the Group, including but not limited to:

Page 6 of 16



1. Consideration and review of the Group’s:
a. Annual Accounting, as prepared by NYSIF; and
b. Proposed Dividend, as calculated and approved by NYSIF; and
c. Proposed Advance Discount, as calculated and approved by NYSIF.

2. The election of members to the Executive Committee, at the initiation of the Group and/or at
the expiry of the term of a duly elected Executive Committee member(s); or for the purpose
of electing a member to fill an open seat on the Executive Committee if a member resigns or
vacates their position prior to the expiration of their term?3; and

3. Receipt and review the Group Manager’s report concerning the Group’s overall performance
and its relationship with NYSIF. This report should also contain a record of the transactions
taken by the Executive Committee during its duly convened meetings, together with
operational recommendations that are in the best interests of the Group and/or its individual
members.

Additional meetings of the General Membership may be scheduled at the discretion of the Chairperson
of the Executive Committee, in consultation with the Group Manager.

C. Scheduling

The Group Manager shall announce the date, time, location, and method [whether in-person or by tele-
conference] of the Group’s Annual Meeting no later than thirty (30) days prior to the Group’s policy
anniversary date. The notice for the meeting shall also include a notice to those members who may
have previously executed a voting proxy [See Section 111 (D)], that they have the option of: (1) revoking
a previously submitted proxy and attending the forthcoming meeting; (2) revoking a previously
submitted proxy and issuing a new proxy with a different representative; or (3) taking no action on a
previously submitted proxy.

While Groups are encouraged to meet in-person whenever practicable and possible, Groups may meet
using commonly accepted and widely available teleconferencing and/or web-conferencing software
and/or technology.

If the agenda for the Annual Meeting is to include an election for the purpose of electing an Executive
Committee and/or filling a vacancy on the Executive Committee, then such notice must indicate that
an election shall occur, detail the number of seats up for election and the length of their term.

D. Attendance and Voting

1. Each member of the Group is encouraged to nominate an individual to represent its interests
and attend the Annual Meeting whenever possible.

a. If a member is unable to attend a meeting of the General Membership, it may choose
to timely identify an individual or entity to serve as its proxy, i.e., grant them the
authority to vote on their behalf. For the proxy to be properly authorized, the member
seeking to appoint a proxy must transmit an executed “Voting Proxy” to the Group
Manager before the scheduled meeting wherein the proxy will be exercised. A voting
proxy is valid until revoked by the member or until the member issues a superseding

proxy.

i. A Valid Proxy Authorization must include:

3 See Section IV(D&E).

Page 7 of 16



=

Name of the Risk; and

NYSIF Policy Number; and

3. The following statement: “The undersigned, a member of the [Insert
Trade Association Group Name and Number] that is underwritten by
NYSIF, hereby authorizes [Insert name of proxy person/entity] to hold
our proxy and vote on our behalf at the [Insert date of meeting]
meeting of the group scheduled to occur at [Insert time]*; and
Printed Name of the Authorized Principal of the Risk, with Title; and
Signature of the Authorized Principal of the Risk; and

6. The following statement: “This voting proxy revokes all previously
issued proxies that may have been authorized by this group member
prior to the date of the instant voting proxy. It shall remain valid until
withdrawn by the member or until the member issues a superseding
proxy.”

N

ok

ii. Both the Industrial Trade Association and the Group Manager are eligible for
appointment as a proxy on behalf of a member. However, a member’s
appointment of the Group Manager as its proxy is only valid if the Group
Manager discloses conflicts of interest® that may be arise during their service
as proxy and the member signs a statement both acknowledging and waiving
those conflicts. Said statement may be included in the proxy itself or in a
separate document accompanying the proxy.

b. NYSIF is the sole arbiter of whether a proxy is valid and sufficient for the holder of said
proxy to exercise voting rights on behalf of the designated risk.

2. Each member of the Group shall be entitled to one (1) vote at all meetings of the General
Membership.

3. Quorum for the valid transaction of Group Business is established when the Group Manager
certifies that a simple majority, defined as 50% of the General Membership plus one (1), is
then present or properly represented by proxy. At the open of any meeting of the General
Membership, and/or at the request of the Chairperson, the Group Manager shall establish that
guorum has been met by indicating the total number of members within the Group, the number
of risks then present, the number of valid proxies, and the number of votes required for the
Group to validly act on a motion then before it.

4. A vote of the membership is valid when it receives a majority of votes present, including
members participating in person and those represented by proxy.

E. Minutes and Vote Record

The Group Manager is responsible for taking and/or recording the minutes of all Group Meetings, which
must document that quorum was established and include a record of all votes taken. This record
should also memorialize that there were sufficient votes in favor of a motion, thereby allowing it to
pass with a majority of the votes then present.

The Group Manager shall transmit a copy of all meeting minutes to NYSIF, its Director of Underwriting
or their designee, within fifteen (15) days of its occurrence. Additionally, the minutes shall be made
available upon request from an individual member of the Group. Group Managers are obligated to
retain the original minutes and voting records for seven (7) years.

4 There are additional requirements for a valid proxy if a Member is seeking to appoint the Group Manager as its
proxy. See Section V(D)(2).
5 See also Section V(D)(2).

Page 8 of 16



SECTION 1V: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

A. Purpose and Powers

The Executive Committee is meant to ensure that the Group, both as a whole and its individual
members, is faithfully pursuing the objectives for which it was established. It is tasked with the general
supervision of the affairs of the Group. In furtherance of these purpose, the Executive Committee

shall:

1.

Form, at the direction of the Chairperson, any necessary sub-committee, for the
accomplishment of a specific task or function. Each sub-committee, so formed, shall become
a standing sub-committee, and may only be discontinued by a vote of the Executive
Committee; and

Arrange for and employ the services of a Group Manager, subject to NYSIF's approval, together
with a regular evaluation of the Group Manager's performance; and

Review the Group’s Safety Experience Report, as prepared by the Group Manager, and take
applicable action, where required; and

Consider prospective group members and issue provisional approvals of membership, as
appropriate; and

Consider and evaluate the performance of individual members in meeting the objectives of the
Group, including their participation in accident prevention programs and their adoption of
relevant safety measures; and

Where appropriate, and no later than thirty (30) days prior to the Group’s Anniversary Date,
the Executive Committee may request that NYSIF exclude an individual risk at the next
anniversary date, based on a finding that said member has failed to comply with the instant
Guidelines and/or retain membership in the underlying Industrial Trade Association.

When in the best interests of the Group and in furtherance of its stated objectives, the
Executive Committee may elect to formally delegate obligations four (4) through six (6) above
to the Group Manager. Any delegation of the Executive Committee’s authority shall be
memorialized by a vote of its membership.

B. Composition

Each Group shall have an Executive Committee, consisting of not less than the minimum number
established below, but always an odd number, which shall be tasked with the general supervision of
the activities and affairs of the Group. The size of the Executive Committee should reflect the size of
the general membership as follows:

1. If the total group membership is 199 policyholders or less, then the Executive Committee must
have no fewer than three (3) members.
2. If the total group membership is 200 policyholders or more, then the Executive Committee
must have no fewer than five (5) members.
C. Positions

Each Executive Committee shall be composed of the following:

Page 9 of 16



1. aChairperson, whose role requires them to preside at all meetings of the Executive Committee
and the General Membership and to conduct, generally, the affairs of the Group; and

2. a Vice-Chairperson, whose role requires them to act in the absence of the Chairperson; and

3. Committee Members, whose role requires them to act in furtherance of the interests of the
Group’s membership; and

4. Group Manager, as ex-officio Secretary to the Group,® a non-voting member who is responsible
for scheduling and arranging for all meetings of the Group conducted pursuant to these
Guidelines, with taking the meetings’ minutes and timely transmitting them to NYSIF.

D. Term

When a Group adopts these Guidelines, it must also select one (1) of the following two (2) options
governing the term of its Executive Committee members:

Option #1

At the next annual meeting after adoption of the instant Guidelines, once elected, members of the
Executive Committee shall hold that position and exercise the powers and duties attributed to it for a
period of one year or until the next annual meeting wherein their successor is elected by the General
Membership; or

Option #2

At the next annual meeting after adoption of the instant Guidelines, for the purposes of election,
membership on the Executive Committee shall be divided into three distinct groups for varying terms
of one (1), two (2), or three (3) years, depending on the Group’s needs. Thereafter, members of the
Executive Committee are expected to hold that position and exercise the powers and duties attributed
to it until the next annual meeting after their respective terms expire.

Notwithstanding which option is adopted by the Group, individual Members who are elected to serve
on the Executive Committee may be elected to unlimited, consecutive, terms.

E. Vacancies

Should a vacancy occur during a term, the remaining members of the Executive Committee shall have
the power to fill said vacancy by appointing a specific individual, duly associated with a member of the
Group, to serve until the next annual meeting.

F. Meetings

1. The Executive Committee is required to convene at least once each Group year, but it may, at
the call of the Chairperson or upon the Group Manager’s request, elect to meet at any time
when said meeting is required to effectuate the objectives of the Group. It may also convene
on the same date, at the same location, and via the same method as the Annual Meeting, so
long as the acts of the Executive Committee are appropriately sequestered from the acts of
the General Membership, and vice-versa, in keeping with the instant Guidelines.

Should the Chairperson of the Executive Committee elect to convene a meeting of the Executive
Committee for a specific purpose apart from the Annual Meeting, he or she shall notify the
Group Manager. The Group Manager is then responsible for publicizing the date, time, location,
method, and purpose of the meeting to the General Membership and NYSIF at least twenty
(20) days prior to its occurrence.

5 For the purposes of calculating total number of members, the Group Manager does NOT count towards the
number/size of a fully constituted Executive Committee.

Page 10 of 16



2. NYSIF has the right to send a representative to every meeting of the Executive Committee and
its established sub-committees. Therefore, the Group Manager shall notify NYSIF's Director of
Underwriting, or their designee, in writing via e-mail: the date, time, location, and method of
such meeting with at least twenty (20) days advance notice.

3. A simple majority of members present in-person, or through video-conferencing technology
where the person is both audible and visible to the remaining members of the Committee for
the duration of the meeting, shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting the
business of the Executive Committee. A majority vote of members present is required to decide
any action of the Executive Committee. Members shall not appear and/or vote by proxy. The
Group Manager, as an ex-officio member of the Executive Committee, shall not vote.

G. Safety Advisory Committee

The Executive Committee shall name and appoint a Safety Advisory Committee at its first meeting
occurring after the Group’s Annual Meeting. This Committee shall be composed of an even number of
members in good standing and the Group Manager and may confer with NYSIF’s Policyholder Services
and Claims Department staff on existing rules and regulations for the prevention of accidents and the
minimization of hazards leading to occupational diseases.

The Safety Advisory Committee will meet, as often as is practicable but at least once each group year
to:

=

Review the past and current experience of the Group; and

2. Review accidents then currently reported and make suggestions for the prevention of
recurrences; and

3. Review, revise and/or formulate proposed Safety Rules and Regulations to be adopted and/or
followed by members of the Group; and

4. Devise methods for obtaining Group Members’ cooperation in accident prevention and for

identifying members who consistently have a poor loss ratio and/or who are otherwise acting

in contravention of the express purposes of the Group.

Any recommended action on the part of the Safety Advisory Committee and/or the Group Manager
does not relieve, reduce, or substitute any duty and/or obligation owed by a Group Member to their
employees or others.

SECTION V: GROUP MANAGER
A. Purpose
A Group Manager shall be employed by the Executive Committee for the purpose of efficiently securing

the benefits for which the Group is established and carrying out the spirit and intent of Workers'’
Compensation Law 8§89, §90, and 8§91 and 12 NYCRR 8§451.1 et seq.

B. Qualifications and Approval

NYSIF is the sole arbiter of whether a person/group/business entity meets the qualifications to serve
as a Group Manager. Upon NYSIF's request, a prospective or appointed Group Manager shall submit
their qualifications to engage in Group Management to NYSIF's Director of Underwriting, or their
designee, and/or its Office of General Counsel.

The factors NYSIF may consider when evaluating a request to approve a Group Manager includes, e.g.:
years of experience in group management or comparable activity, experience with claims management,

Page 11 of 16



experience in loss control, and any other factor deemed relevant and appropriate to the management
of a Safety Group authorized pursuant to 12 NYCRR §451.2.

C. Term

At the next meeting of the Executive Committee after the adoption of the instant Guidelines, it shall
designate and appoint a Group Manager for a term of five (5) years. The Group Manager shall not
begin to act in such capacity until NYSIF has provided its written approval of their appointment. At all
times, the Group Manager serves at the discretion of both the Executive Committee and NYSIF: said
term may be terminated by a vote of the Executive Committee or by NYSIF, at any time.

D. Duties
1. Ex-Officio Secretary to the Safety Group
a. Meeting Schedule

The Group Manager is responsible for arranging for and scheduling all required meetings
of the Group. They are also responsible for timely and properly notifying NYSIF of the
date, time, location, and method of those meetings.

b. Voting Proxies

The Group Manager is responsible for recording all proxies timely received by them and
presenting them to NYSIF's Director of Underwriting or their designee, prior to the
commencement of the Annual Meeting wherein said proxy will be exercised.

c. Attendance and Minutes

The Group Manager shall take and record attendance, both in-person and by proxy, at the
Group’s Meetings, including the Annual Meeting, meetings of the Executive Committee and
any of its sub-committees. They are also responsible for taking and recording the minutes
of all meetings of the Group and maintaining those records for a minimum of seven (7)
years.

2. Nominated Proxy on behalf of Group Member(s)

The Group Manager may be appointed by Group Members to act and/or serve as a proxy for
individual member(s) of the Group at its Annual Meeting. If asked by a Member to act as its proxy,
the Group Manager must disclose any conflict of interest’ that may arise from said appointment.
The Member must acknowledge this disclosure and affirmatively waive the conflicts in their proxy
nomination form, together with the other requirements specified under Section 111(D)(1)(a)(i).

3. Authorized Representative for Individual Members

The Group Manager shall be the representative of the Group, as well as the broker of
record/authorized representative on participating policies, in all dealings with NYSIF.

7 A “Conflict of Interest” occurs when the interests of a Group Manager are implicated in an action and/or vote to
be taken by members of the Group, including but not limited to the nomination and election of Executive
Committee Members, the selection of a Group Manager and the amount of their fee.

Page 12 of 16



4. Applications for Insurance

The Group Manager shall, to the best of their ability, be responsible for ensuring that all applications
for insurance submitted on behalf of prospective group members shall be correctly and fully
completed, containing all information required by NYSIF. To expedite service, NYSIF prefers the
electronic submission of documents, but a Group Manager may submit documents by mail.

5. Recordkeeping for Audit Purposes

The Group Manager shall instruct all members in the proper maintenance of payroll and other
records that may reflect upon any wage expenditures, assist NYSIF in obtaining true and accurate
payroll records and reports, aid NYSIF in the prompt collection of premiums, and keep a record of
the Safety Group’s estimated premium and earned premium for each policy period. They must
also ensure, to the best of their ability, that all applications for insurance submitted on behalf of
prospective group members are correct and complete, containing all information required by NYSIF.

6. Safety Reporting

The Group Manager shall study the past and current Safety Experience of the Group, including
performing an assessment of all accidents currently reported and making
suggestions/recommendations to prevent their recurrence. They shall also regularly review the
safety rules and/or practices of Group Members and devise methods to obtain cooperation in
accident prevention from all Group Members.

Their findings shall be contained in an annual Safety Report, presented to the Executive Committee
of the Group at a duly convened meeting. The Group Manager may make any and all
recommendations which are consistent with the Group’s objectives and in the best interest of its
membership.

7. Loss Prevention

The Group Manager shall provide members with Loss Prevention and Safety Services, including an
analysis of losses, safety training, development of safety programs, and the performance of site
inspections, upon request. They are also responsible to either develop and implement an accident-
prevention program, if the Safety Group does not yet have one and subject to approval by NYSIF,
or to ensure that the pre-existing and approved accident-prevention program is diligently carried-
out by individual members.

8. Preparation and Presentation of Reports concerning Group Performance

In advance of the Group’s annual meeting, the Group Manager shall prepare a report concerning
the Group’s overall performance and its relationship with NYSIF. This report shall also contain a
record of the transactions taken by the Executive Committee during its duly convened meetings,
together with all operational recommendations that are in the best interests of the Group and/or
its individual members and shall be presented to all members at the annual meeting of the Group.

9. Business Operations as Group Manager

The Group Manager has an affirmative obligation to report, in writing to NYSIF's Director of
Underwriting or their designee, any merger, acquisition, sale, dissolution or name change involving
the person/business/entity serving as Group Manager within ten (10) days of its occurrence. They
shall also report any potential, actual or apparent conflict of interest involving itself and NYSIF
within ten (10) days of their knowledge of it.

Page 13 of 16



E. Payment for Services
1. Generally

As payment for their services, the Group Manager may receive remuneration in the form of a
Service Fee assessed against, and paid by, individual members of the Group, as determined by the
Executive Committee at the time of the Manager’s appointment. However, in no circumstance
shall a Group Manager be remunerated with services fees owed for any policy period in which they
did not provide the services of a Group Manager: while a Group Manager may accept services fees
for an upcoming period, a proportional share of those proceeds would be forfeit if the Group
Manager ceases operations, is removed by either the Executive Committee or NYSIF, or their term
is otherwise cancelled.

Such service fees shall not exceed the greater of either twelve (12) percent of standard premium
or twelve (12) percent of NYSIF premium. The Group Manager is solely responsible for the billing
and collection of their service fee. However, the Group Manager shall only collect a fee for the
number of days within a Group Year in which their services were properly and duly rendered under
the instant Guidelines.

2. Removal for Cause

If either the Executive Committee or NYSIF terminate the services of a Group Manager mid-term,
the Group Manager may not assess a charge that is greater than the appropriate pro-rated premium
attributable to the period prior to their termination.

F. Group Expenses

All ordinary expenses of the Group shall be borne by the Group Manager and shall be paid from the
Group Manager's remuneration. The Group Manager shall be prepared to report their total
remuneration, including the method for reaching that figure, upon receipt of a request from NYSIF. If
requested, this report should include their total remuneration and the method for reaching that figure.

G. Removal

NYSIF expressly retains the right, either at the behest of the Executive Committee or based on its own
findings, to terminate or otherwise cancel the remaining term of a Group Manager if the Group Manager
fails to timely and/or meaningfully perform their duties. The cancellation of a term shall result in the
forfeiture of remuneration for any remaining portion of said term and may result in a disqualification
from future service as a Group Manager for any Group authorized under 12 NYCRR §451.2.

SECTION VI: GENERAL PROVISIONS
A. Dividends
NYSIF will distribute dividend payments on a pro-rata basis, based on the audited “earned premium.”
NYSIF will not distribute dividends on unaudited policies: a failure to complete an audit for a policy
period within eighteen (18) months from the policy end date may result in the forfeiture of any dividend
for that policy period on the part of an individual member, with the value of the dividend remaining

part of the Group’s Contingent Balance.

Said divided may also be subject to a reduction in an amount equal to the monetary fines and/or
penalties assessed against NYSIF for acts directly attributable to a policyholder.

Page 14 of 16



B. Fraud

1.

NYSIF retains the exclusive right to categorize certain acts taken by a policyholder as
“fraudulent” for the purposes of the operation of this Group.

If NYSIF finds that a policyholder committed an act of insurance fraud or said policyholder
agrees, in an executed settlement with NYSIF, to have engaged in potentially fraudulent activity
involving the misrepresentation of payrolls and/or business ownership and/or operations
related to a policy issued by virtue of said policyholder's membership within the instant group,
then NYSIF reserves the right to:

a. assess a penalty, in an amount up to and including the amount of the annual dividend
which would have been otherwise payable or previously paid to a policyholder for the
year(s) during which the policyholder committed the act(s) of fraud; and/or

b. exclude such policyholder from continued membership in the Group as of the Group’s
next anniversary commencing in the year immediately following the determination of
the fraud.

c. NYSIF's Executive Staff, Office of General Counsel, and/or its Underwriting
Department, shall assess such penalty or penalties, as appropriate.

d. Any dividends withheld or recovered shall be added to the Group’s Contingent Balance,
as provided for in the Group Endorsement.

C. Discontinuance

1.

NYSIF may elect to discontinue this Safety Group as of any anniversary date if, in the opinion
of its Executive Management, the Group’s continued operation does not serve the basic
objectives for which the group was formed or the number of eligible risks within the Group
falls below twelve (12) and/or the value of its annual premium falls below $500,000.00.

a. Upon discontinuance, NYSIF may elect to place individual policyholders in either its
General Group or a different Safety Group for which the risk may be eligible.

The Group may elect to discontinue its existence by enacting a resolution to such effect but
said resolution must pass with a two-thirds vote of all active members of the Group.

Said resolution in favor of discontinuance is only valid if the Group notifies NYSIF, in writing,
prior to the Group’s anniversary date and no later than thirty (30) days from the adoption of
the duly passed resolution. The discontinuance or termination shall be effective as of the group
anniversary date immediately following the adoption of the resolution.

D. Amendments

NYSIF reserves the right to amend the instant Operating Guidelines at any time. If NYSIF decides
to issue an amendment, it will transmit a copy of the amendment to the Group Manager at least
thirty (30) days prior to the Group’s Renewal Period. The amendment shall then become part of
the Group’s Operating Guidelines, unless and until revoked by NYSIF. Any amendment issued by
NYSIF, may be revoked by NYSIF at any time, after giving the Group Manager thirty (30) days prior
to the Group’s Renewal Period.

The Group Manager shall, within 30 days of receipt from NYSIF, send a copy of the new rule
and/or amendment to each Group member.

[Signature Page to Follow]

Page 15 of 16



Approved as to Content and Form by:

David F. Wertheim
Chief Counsel, Office of General Counsel
Date:

Thomas Racko
Director of Underwriting, Policyholder Services
Date:

Approved and Adopted by NYSIF's Board
of Commissioners on September 18, 2024

Page 16 of 16

Adopted by:

Name of Group

Chairperson Signature

Group Manager Signature

Date

Executive Committee Term Selection
Option #1 [ Option #2 [



New York State Insurance Fund
Office of General Counsel

Operating Guidelines
for
Trade Groups

Page 10of 17



VI.

Introduction

A.
B.

Obijectives
Identification

General Membership

moowz»

Eligibility
Term of Membership

Table of Contents

Transfer between Safety Groups

Removal or Withdrawal
Obligations of Membership

Meetings of the General Membership

moowy

Notice to NYSIF

Annual Meeting
Scheduling

Attendance and Voting
Minutes and Vote Record

Executive Committee

@mMmoom >

Purpose and Powers
Composition

Positions

Term

Vacancies

Meetings

Safety Advisory Committee

Group Manager

Gmmo o w>»

Purpose

Quialifications and Approval
Term

Duties

Payment for Services
Group Expenses

Removal

General Provisions

OO w>»

Dividends
Fraud
Discontinuance
Amendments

Page 2 of 17

0O ~N~NO O (e)} a b~ b oww

(e}

11

11
11
12
12
14
14
14

14

14
15
15
15



SECTION I: INTRODUCTION

The adoption of the instant “Operating Guidelines” by the Board of Commissioners of the New York State
Insurance Fund (herein referred to as “NYSIF”) on September 18, 2024, as effective on October 1, 2024,
serves to revoke and supersede any and all prior “Rules and Regulations,” together with any and all
previously approved amendments, governing the operations of Safety Groups organized and operating
pursuant to Workers Compensation Law 8§89, §90, and 8§91 and 12 NYCRR 8451.1 et seq.

A. Objectives

This Trade Group, a form of Safety Group authorized pursuant to 12 NYCRR 8§451.2(a)(1), exists to
continuously encourage the active prevention of workplace accidents and occupational diseases, the
formulation of sound safety programs, the promotion of improvements in medical care for injured
employees, and the reduction of the insurance costs borne by its individual members.

Incidental and critical to these purposes is the ongoing encouragement of members to assist NYSIF in
the timely submission and proper handling of claims made against an individual policy, including the
timely submission of accurate payroll information.

B. Identification

At the time of adoption, NYSIF has assigned Group Number [Insert Group No.] to the instant Trade
Group (herein referred to as the “Group™). In all communications and dealings with NYSIF concerning
Group operations, members and Group Managers are advised to reference the Group using this
number.

The Trade Group’s formal name is [Insert Group Name here], established on [Insert Date of
Establishment].

SECTION I1: GENERAL MEMBERSHIP
A. Eligibility
In accordance with 12 NYCRR 8§451.3(a), all policyholders who are engaged in the following types of
employment, and whose compensation insurance experience records meet the approval of NYSIF and
the Group’s Executive Committee, shall be considered eligible for membership within the Group.
Only those classifications, which apply in whole or in part to the industry, are to be included within the

instant Group and one of such authorized classifications must be the governing classification for a risk
to become eligible for membership:

Class Code: Description:

[XXXX] [Complete before final adoption]
[XXXX] [Complete before final adoption]
[XXXX] [Complete before final adoption]

B. Term of Membership
NYSIF reserves the right to deny the application of a prospective Group member, for any reason. No

prospective member shall be allowed to join the Group without the express consent and approval of
NYSIF.

Page 3 of 17



Once approved, said membership shall be continuous from policy year to policy year, until a risk either
withdraws or is removed, by either the Executive Committee!, subject to NYSIF's approval, or NYSIF
itself.

C. Transfer between Safety Groups

An eligible risk may transfer from the General Group to this Trade Group only upon its anniversary date
and only if it provides timely notice to both the Group Manager and NYSIF. Notice is timely if it is
received by both the Group Manager? and NYSIF no later than thirty (30) days prior to its anniversary
date. However, no risk/policy may be transferred directly from any NYSIF Safety Group to another
NYSIF Safety Group unless NYSIF has covered such policy in its General Group for a minimum of two
(2) years.

D. Removal or Withdrawal

There are certain circumstances whereby an individual member may choose to leave the Group, may
be asked by the Executive Committee to leave the Group, subject to NYSIF's approval, and/or may be
required by NYSIF to leave the Group:

1. By Decision of the Individual Member:

a. Any member may choose to withdraw from the Group, effective the subsequent Group
anniversary date, if they provide a “Notice of Intent to Withdraw” to both the Group
Manager and NYSIF, no later than thirty (30) days prior to the Group’s anniversary
date. A member may also be allowed to withdraw, at any time, with the consent and
approval of NYSIF.

b. By Cancellation of Insurance: an individual risk’'s termination of insurance coverage
with NYSIF shall also operate to terminate any and all benefits that would otherwise
accrue by virtue of membership within this Group, except that such risk may be entitled
to participate and/or receive any dividend that may be declared for the last period of
its active membership within the Group or other such unpaid periods, in proportion to
the earned premium of the member for such period(s).

The cancellation of insurance during the General Group Policy period shall render such
risk ineligible for membership in a Safety Group until after the lapsing of the General
Group Policy renewal date following the date of cancellation.

2. By the Executive Committee: the Executive Committee, in consultation with or upon
recommendation of its Group Manager, may decide to seek the exclusion and removal of any
member from continued membership, at the anniversary date of the group, for failure to
comply with group rules.

Once the Executive Committee makes this decision, it is then responsible for transmitting to
both the risk and NYSIF, a “Notice of Intent to Discontinue Membership”, including the
reason(s) in support of the decision, no later than thirty (30) days prior to the anniversary date
of the Group. The approval of the discontinuance of membership remains in the sole discretion
of NYSIF.

3. By NYSIF: if, in NYSIF's opinion, an individual risk’s continued membership within the Group
would not serve the basic objectives for which the Group is formed, then NYSIF may remove
the member from the Group.

1 See Section IV: “Executive Committee”
2 See Section V: “Group Manager”

Page 4 of 17



E. Obligations of Membership

Membership in the instant Trade Group is voluntary. However, if approved for membership, an
individual risk agrees to abide by these operating guidelines, together with:

1. Annual Meeting

Each Group member shall endeavor to have an authorized representative present at the Annual
Group Meeting. If no person directly associated with the member is available to attend, the
member is then responsible for arranging for a proxy to attend and vote in their stead. This
includes executing a valid “Voting Proxy” as defined in Section 111(D) of these Guidelines and
submitting such proxy to the Group Manager no later than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled
meeting.

2. Payroll Records and Audits

Each Group member shall timely and promptly transmit accurate payroll information to the Group
Manager and/or NYSIF and actively participate in all audits required by NYSIF. The member shall
also keep and maintain a complete record of their payroll expenses, properly separated by
classification. NYSIF, and its authorized representatives, shall be permitted to examine an
individual member’s books, vouchers, contracts, documents, and records of any and every kind,
which show or tend to show the premium due to insure the risk.

If a member fails to timely cooperate with either a NYSIF audit or payroll verification request and/or
fails to have an audit completed within eighteen (18) months from the end of a policy period, the
member may be liable to forfeit its dividend for an estimated policy period and/or removal from
the Group, subject to NYSIF's discretion.

3. Claims and Medical Services

Each member shall:
a. Report, promptly, all instances of accidents and occupational diseases as soon as is
practicable, but not later than ten (10) days after their occurrence, in accordance with

applicable provisions of the NYS Workers’ Compensation Law. Such reporting shall occur
in a manner and method prescribed by NYSIF; and

b. Keep and maintain a record of all injuries sustained by their employees in the course of
their employment. Such record shall include the name of the injured employee, their
occupation/title, a list of duties, physical requirements of the job (if any), the time, date,
and place/location of injury, a description of the occurrence, a list of eyewitnesses, the
name of the employee’s direct supervisor, treatment rendered, and a log of lost time
attributed to the accident; and

c. Consult, with the Group Manager and/or NYSIF Claims Department staff, on matters
relating to all accidents, occupational diseases, medical care, treatment, claims handling
and investigatory matters; and

d. Notify, promptly, the Group Manager and/or NYSIF Claims Department staff of an
employee’s lost time attributable to either an accident or an occupational disease; and

e. Notify, promptly, the Group Manager and/or NYSIF Claims Department staff when said
employee returns to work and timely file corresponding paperwork; and

Page 5 of 17



f. Provide efficient and adequate medical treatment and care to injured employees within
the parameters set forth under Workers’ Compensation Law §13; and

g. Transmit, promptly, all medical bills to NYSIF Claims Department staff, together with
any information or communication, whether written or oral, received from an employee
who has filed a claim, their physician, their attorney, or any other person; and

h. Cooperate in the investigation of any accident, immediately after its occurrence and
throughout the duration of any resulting Claim, to determine the cause of the accident and
the prevention of recurrence.

4. Accident Prevention Program(s)

Each member of the Group shall actively participate in the Group Manager's and/or NYSIF's
Accident Prevention Program(s). Additionally, members are responsible for

a. Establishing and maintaining, at individual worksites, a comprehensive and effective
safety program for the education of all employees, inclusive of supervisors and staff,
in safe practices, with particular attention paid to new employees; and

b. When practicable, establishing, appointing, and maintaining a Safety Committee,
composed of management, superintendent(s), foreperson(s), and responsible
employees for the purposes of holding regular safety meetings and formulating rules
and regulations peculiar to the Business, as insured, for the prevention of accidents
and the minimization of occupational disease hazards; and

c. Providing and allowing access to the Business’ premises to NYSIF Representatives and
Staff, at any time during business hours, for the purpose of making inspections,
conducting investigations, and providing recommendations for the elimination of
accidents and the minimization of occupational disease hazards; and

d. Availing themselves of the fullest use of NYSIF facilities, programs, and services in
accident prevention and safety work and taking prompt action on all recommendations
made by the Group Manager, the Executive Committee, Safety Advisory sub-
Committee and/or NYSIF for correcting unsafe conditions.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, each group member remains responsible for compliance
with all Federal, State, and Local Safety Laws, Rules, and Regulations, as applicable.

SECTION 111: MEETINGS OF THE GENERAL MEMBERSHIP

A. Notice to NYSIF

NYSIF has the right to be represented at all meetings of the Group. Therefore, the Group Manager
shall provide to NYSIF's Director of Underwriting, or their designee, a minimum of (20) days advance
written notice of all meetings of the Trade Group, including all meetings of its Executive Committee
and any of its sub-Committee(s).

B. Annual Meeting

The General Membership shall convene at least once per policy year for the purpose of transacting the
business of the Group, including but not limited to:

1. Consideration and review of the Group’s:
a. Annual Accounting, as prepared by NYSIF; and

Page 6 of 17



b. Proposed Dividend, as calculated and approved by NYSIF; and
c. Proposed Advance Discount, as calculated and approved by NYSIF.

2. The election of members to the Executive Committee, at the initiation of the Group and/or at
the expiry of the term of a duly elected Executive Committee member(s); or for the purpose
of electing a member to fill an open seat on the Executive Committee if a member resigns or
vacates their position prior to the expiration of their term?3; and

3. Receipt and review the Group Manager’s report concerning the Group’s overall performance
and its relationship with NYSIF. This report should also contain a record of the transactions
taken by the Executive Committee during its duly convened meetings, together with
operational recommendations that are in the best interests of the Group and/or its individual
members.

Additional meetings of the General Membership may be scheduled at the discretion of the Chairperson
of the Executive Committee, in consultation with the Group Manager.

C. Scheduling

The Group Manager shall announce the date, time, location, and method [whether in-person or by tele-
conference] of the Group’s Annual Meeting no later than thirty (30) days prior to the Group’s policy
anniversary date. The notice for the meeting shall also include a notice to those members who may
have previously executed a voting proxy [See Section 111 (D)], that they have the option of: (1) revoking
a previously submitted proxy and attending the forthcoming meeting; (2) revoking a previously
submitted proxy and issuing a new proxy with a different representative; or (3) taking no action on a
previously submitted proxy.

While Groups are encouraged to meet in-person whenever practicable and possible, Groups may meet
using commonly accepted and widely available teleconferencing and/or web-conferencing software
and/or technology.

If the agenda for the Annual Meeting is to include an election for the purpose of electing an Executive
Committee and/or filling a vacancy on the Executive Committee, then such notice must indicate that
an election shall occur, detail the number of seats up for election and the length of their term.

D. Attendance and Voting

1. Each member of the Group is encouraged to nominate an individual to represent its interests
and attend the Annual Meeting whenever possible.

a. If a member is unable to attend a meeting of the General Membership, it may choose
to timely identify an individual or entity to serve as its proxy, i.e., grant them the
authority to vote on their behalf. For the proxy to be properly authorized, the member
seeking to appoint a proxy must transmit an executed “Voting Proxy” to the Group
Manager before the scheduled meeting wherein the proxy will be exercised. A voting
proxy is valid until revoked by the member or until the member issues a superseding
proxy.

i. A Valid Proxy Authorization must include:

1. Name of the Risk; and
2. NYSIF Policy Number; and

3 See Section IV(D&E).

Page 7 of 17



3. The following statement: “The undersigned, a member of the [Insert
Trade Group Name and Number] that is underwritten by NYSIF,
hereby authorizes [Insert name of proxy person/entity] to hold our
proxy and vote on our behalf at the [Insert date of meeting] meeting
of the group scheduled to occur at [Insert time]*; and

Printed Name of the Authorized Principal of the Risk, with Title; and
Signature of the Authorized Principal of the Risk.

The following statement: “This voting proxy revokes all previously
issued proxies that may have been authorized by this group member
prior to the date of the instant voting proxy. It shall remain valid until
withdrawn by the member or until the member issues a superseding
proxy.”

o0k

ii. The Group Manager is eligible for appointment as a proxy on behalf of a
member. However, a member’s appointment of the Group Manager is only
valid if the Group Manager discloses conflicts of interest® posed by their service
as proxy at the forthcoming meeting and the member signs a statement both
acknowledging and waiving those conflicts. Said statement may be included
in the proxy itself or in a separate document accompanying the proxy.

b. NYSIF is the sole arbiter of whether a proxy is valid and sufficient for the holder of said
proxy to exercise voting rights on behalf of the designated risk.

2. Each member of the Group shall be entitled to one (1) vote at all meetings of the General
Membership.

3. Quorum for the valid transaction of Group Business is established when the Group Manager
certifies that a simple majority, defined as 50% of the General Membership plus one (1), is
then present or properly represented by proxy. At the open of any meeting of the General
Membership, and/or at the request of the Chairperson, the Group Manager shall establish that
guorum has been met by indicating the total number of members within the Group, the number
of risks then present, the number of valid proxies, and the number of votes required for the
Group to validly act on a motion then before it.

4. A vote of the membership is valid when it receives a majority of votes present, including
members participating in person and those represented by proxy.

E. Minutes and Vote Record

The Group Manager is responsible for taking and/or recording the minutes of all Group Meetings, which
must document that quorum was established and include a record of all votes taken. This record
should also memorialize that there were sufficient votes in favor of a motion, thereby allowing it to
pass with a majority of the votes then present.

The Group Manager shall transmit a copy of all meeting minutes to NYSIF, its Director of Underwriting
or their designee, within fifteen (15) days of its occurrence. Additionally, the minutes shall be made
available upon request from an individual member of the Group. Group Managers are obligated to
retain the original minutes and voting records for seven (7) years.

4 There are additional requirements for a valid proxy if a Member is seeking to appoint the Group Manager as its
proxy. See Section V(D)(2).
5 See also Section V(D)(2).

Page 8 of 17



SECTION 1V: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

A. Purpose and Powers

The Executive Committee is meant to ensure that the Group, both as a whole and its individual
members, is faithfully pursuing the objectives for which it was established. It is tasked with the general
supervision of the affairs of the Group. In furtherance of these purpose, the Executive Committee

shall:

1.

Form, at the direction of the Chairperson, any necessary sub-committee, for the
accomplishment of a specific task or function. Each sub-committee, so formed, shall become
a standing sub-committee, and may only be discontinued by a vote of the Executive
Committee; and

Arrange for and employ the services of a Group Manager, subject to NYSIF's approval, together
with a regular evaluation of the Group Manager's performance; and

Review the Group’s Safety Experience Report, as prepared by the Group Manager, and take
applicable action, where required; and

Consider prospective group members and issue provisional approvals of membership, as
appropriate; and

Consider and evaluate the performance of individual members in meeting the objectives of the
Group, including their participation in accident prevention programs and their adoption of
relevant safety measures; and

Where appropriate, and no later than thirty (30) days prior to the Group’s Anniversary Date,
the Executive Committee may request that NYSIF exclude an individual risk at the next
anniversary date, based on a finding that said member has failed to comply with the instant
Guidelines.

When in the best interests of the Group and in furtherance of its stated objectives, the
Executive Committee may elect to formally delegate obligations four (4) through six (6) above
to the Group Manager. Any delegation of the Executive Committee’s authority shall be
memorialized by a vote of its membership.

B. Composition

Each Group shall have an Executive Committee, consisting of not less than the minimum number
established below, but always an odd number, which shall be tasked with the general supervision of
the activities and affairs of the Group. The size of the Executive Committee should reflect the size of
the general membership as follows:

1. If the total group membership is 199 policyholders or less, then the Executive Committee must
have no fewer than three (3) members.
2. If the total group membership is 200 policyholders or more, then the Executive Committee
must have no fewer than five (5) members.
C. Positions

Each Executive Committee shall be composed of the following:

Page 9 of 17



1. aChairperson, whose role requires them to preside at all meetings of the Executive Committee
and the General Membership and to conduct, generally, the affairs of the Group; and

2. a Vice-Chairperson, whose role requires them to act in the absence of the Chairperson; and

3. Committee Members, whose role requires them to act in furtherance of the interests of the
Group’s membership; and

4. Group Manager, as ex-officio Secretary to the Group,® a non-voting member who is responsible
for scheduling and arranging for all meetings of the Group conducted pursuant to these
Guidelines, with taking the meetings’ minutes and timely transmitting them to NYSIF.

D. Term

When a Group adopts these Guidelines, it must also select one (1) of the following two (2) options
governing the term of its Executive Committee members:

Option #1

At the next annual meeting after adoption of the instant Guidelines, once elected, members of the
Executive Committee shall hold that position and exercise the powers and duties attributed to it for a
period of one year or until the next annual meeting wherein their successor is elected by the General
Membership; or

Option #2

At the next annual meeting after adoption of the instant Guidelines, for the purposes of election,
membership on the Executive Committee shall be divided into three distinct groups for varying terms
of one (1), two (2), or three (3) years, depending on the Group’s needs. Thereafter, members of the
Executive Committee are expected to hold that position and exercise the powers and duties attributed
to it until the next annual meeting after their respective terms expire.

Notwithstanding which option is adopted by the Group, individual Members who are elected to serve
on the Executive Committee may be elected to unlimited, consecutive, terms.

E. Vacancies

Should a vacancy occur during a term, the remaining members of the Executive Committee shall have
the power to fill said vacancy by appointing a specific individual, duly associated with a member of the
Group, to serve until the next annual meeting.

F. Meetings

1. The Executive Committee is required to convene at least once each Group year, but it may, at
the call of the Chairperson or upon the Group Manager’s request, elect to meet at any time
when said meeting is required to effectuate the objectives of the Group. It may also convene
on the same date, at the same location, and via the same method as the Annual Meeting, so
long as the acts of the Executive Committee are appropriately sequestered from the acts of
the General Membership, and vice-versa, in keeping with the instant Guidelines.

Should the Chairperson of the Executive Committee elect to convene a meeting of the Executive
Committee for a specific purpose apart from the Annual Meeting, he or she shall notify the
Group Manager. The Group Manager is then responsible for publicizing the date, time, location,
method, and purpose of the meeting to the General Membership and NYSIF at least twenty
(20) days prior to its occurrence.

5 For the purposes of calculating total number of members, the Group Manager does NOT count towards the
number/size of a fully constituted Executive Committee.

Page 10 of 17



2. NYSIF has the right to send a representative to every meeting of the Executive Committee and
its established sub-committees. Therefore, the Group Manager shall notify NYSIF's Director of
Underwriting, or their designee, in writing via e-mail: the date, time, location, and method of
such meeting with at least twenty (20) days advance notice.

3. A simple majority of members present in-person, or through video-conferencing technology
where the person is both audible and visible to the remaining members of the Committee for
the duration of the meeting, shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting the
business of the Executive Committee. A majority vote of members present is required to decide
any action of the Executive Committee. Members shall not appear and/or vote by proxy. The
Group Manager, as an ex-officio member of the Executive Committee, shall not vote.

G. Safety Advisory Committee

The Executive Committee shall name and appoint a Safety Advisory Committee at its first meeting
occurring after the Group’s Annual Meeting. This Committee shall be composed of an even number of
members in good standing and the Group Manager and may confer with NYSIF’s Policyholder Services
and Claims Department staff on existing rules and regulations for the prevention of accidents and the
minimization of hazards leading to occupational diseases.

The Safety Advisory Committee will meet, as often as is practicable but at least once each group year
to:

=

Review the past and current experience of the Group; and

2. Review accidents then currently reported and make suggestions for the prevention of
recurrences; and

3. Review, revise and/or formulate proposed Safety Rules and Regulations to be adopted and/or
followed by members of the Group; and

4. Devise methods for obtaining Group Members’ cooperation in accident prevention and for

identifying members who consistently have a poor loss ratio and/or who are otherwise acting

in contravention of the express purposes of the Group.

Any recommended action on the part of the Safety Advisory Committee and/or the Group Manager
does not relieve, reduce, or substitute any duty and/or obligation owed by a Group Member to their
employees or others.

SECTION V: GROUP MANAGER
A. Purpose
A Group Manager shall be employed by the Executive Committee for the purpose of efficiently securing

the benefits for which the Group is established and carrying out the spirit and intent of Workers'’
Compensation Law 8§89, §90, and 8§91 and 12 NYCRR 8§451.1 et seq.

B. Qualifications and Approval

NYSIF is the sole arbiter of whether a person/group/business entity meets the qualifications to serve
as a Group Manager. Upon NYSIF's request, a prospective or appointed Group Manager shall submit
their qualifications to engage in Group Management to NYSIF's Director of Underwriting, or their
designee, and/or its Office of General Counsel.

The factors NYSIF may consider when evaluating a request to approve a Group Manager includes, e.g.:
years of experience in group management or comparable activity, experience with claims management,

Page 11 of 17



experience in loss control, and any other factor deemed relevant and appropriate to the management
of a Safety Group authorized pursuant to 12 NYCRR §451.2.

C. Term

At the next meeting of the Executive Committee after the adoption of the instant Guidelines, it shall
designate and appoint a Group Manager for a term of five (5) years. The Group Manager shall not
begin to act in such capacity until NYSIF has provided its written approval of their appointment. At all
times, the Group Manager serves at the discretion of both the Executive Committee and NYSIF: said
term may be terminated by a vote of the Executive Committee or by NYSIF, at any time

D. Duties
1. Ex-Officio Secretary to the Safety Group
a. Meeting Schedule
The Group Manager is responsible for arranging for and scheduling all required meetings
of the Group. They are also responsible for timely and properly notifying NYSIF of the
date, time, location, and method of those meetings.
b. Voting Proxies
The Group Manager is responsible for recording all proxies timely received by them and
presenting them to NYSIF's Director of Underwriting or their designee, prior to the
commencement of the Annual Meeting wherein said proxy will be exercised.
c. Attendance and Minutes
The Group Manager shall take and record attendance, both in-person and by proxy, at the
Group’s Meetings, including the Annual Meeting, meetings of the Executive Committee and
any of its sub-committees. They are also responsible for taking and recording the minutes
of all meetings of the Group and maintaining those records for a minimum of seven (7)
years.
2. Nominated Proxy on behalf of Group Member(s)
The Group Manager may be appointed by Group Members to act and/or serve as a proxy for
individual member(s) of the Group at its Annual Meeting. If asked by a Member to act as its proxy,
the Group Manager must disclose any conflict of interest’ that may arise from said appointment.
The Member must acknowledge this disclosure and affirmatively waive the conflicts in their proxy
nomination form, together with the other requirements specified under Section 111(D)(1)(a)(i).

3. Authorized Representative for Individual Members

The Group Manager shall be the representative of the Group, as well as the broker of
record/authorized representative on participating policies, in all dealings with NYSIF.

4. Applications for Insurance

7 A “Conflict of Interest” occurs when the interests of a Group Manager are implicated in an action and/or vote to
be taken by members of the Group, including but not limited to the nomination and election of Executive
Committee Members, the selection of a Group Manager and the amount of their fee.

Page 12 of 17



The Group Manager shall, to the best of their ability, be responsible for ensuring that all applications
for insurance submitted on behalf of prospective group members shall be correctly and fully
completed, containing all information required by NYSIF. To expedite service, NYSIF prefers the
electronic submission of documents, but a Group Manager may submit documents by mail.

5. Recordkeeping for Audit Purposes

The Group Manager shall instruct all members in the proper maintenance of payroll and other
records that may reflect upon any wage expenditures, assist NYSIF in obtaining true and accurate
payroll records and reports, aid NYSIF in the prompt collection of premiums, and keep a record of
the Safety Group’s estimated premium and earned premium for each policy period. They must
also ensure, to the best of their ability, that all applications for insurance submitted on behalf of
prospective group members are correct and complete, containing all information required by NYSIF.

6. Safety Reporting

The Group Manager shall study the past and current Safety Experience of the Group, including
performing an assessment of all accidents currently reported and making
suggestions/recommendations to prevent their recurrence. They shall also regularly review the
safety rules and/or practices of Group Members and devise methods to obtain cooperation in
accident prevention from all Group Members.

Their findings shall be contained in an annual Safety Report, presented to the Executive Committee
of the Group at a duly convened meeting. The Group Manager may make any and all
recommendations which are consistent with the Group’s objectives and in the best interest of its
membership.

7. Loss Prevention

The Group Manager shall provide members with Loss Prevention and Safety Services, including an
analysis of losses, safety training, development of safety programs, and the performance of site
inspections, upon request. They are also responsible to either develop and implement an accident-
prevention program, if the Safety Group does not yet have one and subject to approval by NYSIF,
or to ensure that the pre-existing and approved accident-prevention program is diligently carried-
out by individual members.

8. Preparation and Presentation of Reports concerning Group Performance

In advance of the Group’s annual meeting, the Group Manager shall prepare a report concerning
the Group’s overall performance and its relationship with NYSIF. This report shall also contain a
record of the transactions taken by the Executive Committee during its duly convened meetings,
together with all operational recommendations that are in the best interests of the Group and/or
its individual members and shall be presented to all members at the annual meeting of the Group.

9. Business Operations as Group Manager

The Group Manager has an affirmative obligation to report, in writing to NYSIF's Director of
Underwriting or their designee, any merger, acquisition, sale, dissolution or name change involving
the person/business/entity serving as Group Manager within ten (10) days of its occurrence. They
shall also report any potential, actual or apparent conflict of interest involving itself and NYSIF
within ten (10) days of their knowledge of it.

Page 13 of 17



E. Payment for Services
1. Generally

As payment for their services, the Group Manager may receive remuneration in the form of a
Service Fee assessed against, and paid by, individual members of the Group, as determined by the
Executive Committee at the time of the Manager’s appointment. However, in no circumstance
shall a Group Manager be remunerated with services fees owed for any policy period in which they
did not provide the services of a Group Manager: while a Group Manager may accept services fees
for an upcoming period, a proportional share of those proceeds would be forfeit if the Group
Manager ceases operations, is removed by either the Executive Committee or NYSIF, or their term
is otherwise cancelled.

Such service fees shall not exceed the greater of either twelve (12) percent of standard premium
or twelve (12) percent of NYSIF premium. The Group Manager is solely responsible for the billing
and collection of their service fee. However, the Group Manager shall only collect a fee for the
number of days within a Group Year in which their services were properly and duly rendered under
the instant Guidelines.

2. Removal for Cause

If either the Executive Committee or NYSIF terminate the services of a Group Manager mid-term,
the Group Manager may not assess a charge that is greater than the appropriate pro-rated premium
attributable to the period prior to their termination.

F. Group Expenses

All ordinary expenses of the Group shall be borne by the Group Manager and shall be paid from the
Group Manager's remuneration. The Group Manager shall be prepared to report their total
remuneration, including the method for reaching that figure, upon receipt of a request from NYSIF. If
requested, this report should include their total remuneration and the method for reaching that figure.

G. Removal

NYSIF expressly retains the right, either at the behest of the Executive Committee or based on its own
findings, to terminate or otherwise cancel the remaining term of a Group Manager if the Group Manager
fails to timely and/or meaningfully perform their duties. The cancellation of a term shall result in the
forfeiture of remuneration for any remaining portion of said term and may result in a disqualification
from future service as a Group Manager for any Group authorized under 12 NYCRR 8451.2.

SECTION VI: GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Dividends

NYSIF will distribute dividend payments on a pro-rata basis, based on the audited “earned premium.”
NYSIF will not distribute dividends on unaudited policies: a failure to complete an audit for a policy
period within eighteen (18) months from the policy end date may result in the forfeiture of any dividend
for that policy period on the part of an individual member, with the value of the dividend remaining
part of the Group’s Contingent Balance.

Said divided may also be subject to a reduction in an amount equal to the monetary fines and/or
penalties assessed against NYSIF for acts directly attributable to a policyholder.

Page 14 of 17



B. Fraud

1.

NYSIF retains the exclusive right to categorize certain acts taken by a policyholder as
“fraudulent” for the purposes of the operation of this Group.

If NYSIF finds that a policyholder committed an act of insurance fraud or said policyholder
agrees, in an executed settlement with NYSIF, to have engaged in potentially fraudulent activity
involving the misrepresentation of payrolls and/or business ownership and/or operations
related to a policy issued by virtue of said policyholder's membership within the instant group,
then NYSIF reserves the right to:

a. assess a penalty, in an amount up to and including the amount of the annual dividend
which would have been otherwise payable or previously paid to a policyholder for the
year(s) during which the policyholder committed the act(s) of fraud; and/or

b. exclude such policyholder from continued membership in the Group as of the Group’s
next anniversary commencing in the year immediately following the determination of
the fraud.

c. NYSIF's Executive Staff, Office of General Counsel, and/or its Underwriting
Department, shall assess such penalty or penalties, as appropriate.

d. Any dividends withheld or recovered shall be added to the Group’s Contingent Balance,
as provided for in the Group Endorsement.

C. Discontinuance

1.

NYSIF may elect to discontinue this Safety Group as of any anniversary date if, in the opinion
of its Executive Management, the Group’s continued operation does not serve the basic
objectives for which the group was formed or the number of eligible risks within the Group
falls below twelve (12) and/or the value of its annual premium falls below $500,000.00.

a. Upon discontinuance, NYSIF may elect to place individual policyholders in either its
General Group or a different Safety Group for which the risk may be eligible.

The Group may elect to discontinue its existence by enacting a resolution to such effect but
said resolution must pass with a two-thirds vote of all active members of the Group.

Said resolution in favor of discontinuance is only valid if the Group notifies NYSIF, in writing,
prior to the Group’s anniversary date and no later than thirty (30) days from the adoption of
the duly passed resolution. The discontinuance or termination shall be effective as of the group
anniversary date immediately following the adoption of the resolution.

D. Amendments

NYSIF reserves the right to amend the instant Operating Guidelines at any time. If NYSIF decides
to issue an amendment, it will transmit a copy of the amendment to the Group Manager at least
thirty (30) days prior to the Group’s Renewal Period. The amendment shall then become part of
the Group’s Operating Guidelines, unless and until revoked by NYSIF. Any amendment issued by
NYSIF, may be revoked by NYSIF at any time, after giving the Group Manager thirty (30) days prior
to the Group’s Renewal Period.

The Group Manager shall, within 30 days of receipt from NYSIF, send a copy of the new rule
and/or amendment to each Group member.

Page 15 of 17



[Signature Page to Follow]

Page 16 of 17



Approved as to Content and Form by: Adopted by:

David F. Wertheim Name of Group
Chief Counsel, Office of General Counsel
Date:

Chairperson Signature

Thomas Racko Group Manager Signature
Director of Underwriting, Policyholder Services
Date:
Date
Approved and Adopted by NYSIF's Board Executive Committee Term Selection
of Commissioners on September 18, 2024 Option #1 [ Option #2 [

Page 17 of 17



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

RESOLUTION

The following is a resolution considered by the Board of Commissioners of the State Insurance
Fund at a meeting held on Wednesday, September 18, 2024. A quorum was present throughout:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners hereby approves the amending of 12
NYCRR 451.5 and 12 NYCRR 451.9 as denoted in “Appendix A” and “Appendix B,”
respectively. Further, the Board authorizes the General Attorney, or their staff, to liaise
with the New York State Department of State to publish the amended regulations.

Commissioner provided the motion to approve
Commissioner seconded the motion
YES NO ABSTAIN

Commissioner Delgado

Commissioner Kathuria

Commissioner Kessler

Commissioner Melvin

Commissioner Thomas

Commissioner Graham

Commissioner Ourlicht

Commissioner Dinallo

Chairman Theobalds

Michael Totaro
Assistant Secretary

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

Appendix A

AMENDMENTS 70 12 NYCRR 451.5

(Items in BLUE and BOLD will be added to the text of the regulation, and items in RED
and CROSSED OUT will be deleted from the regulation)

(a) A safety group shall employ the services of a group manager for the purpose of
efficiently securing the benefits for which the group is established, ar¢ carrying out the
spirit and intent of the law, and ensuring the proper application of the group’s

operating guidelines.

(b) Qualification and approval of group manager. The proposed group manager shall
submit, in writing, to the State Fund his their qualifications for group management. No

group manager shall begin to act in such capacity until the State Fund ras-given-its

approves their appointment in writing.

(c) Duties of group manager.

(1) The group manager shall promulgate rules and regulations (subject to the
approval of the State Fund) for establishing an accident-prevention program. He
shall diligently carry out such approved program and shall cooperate fully with
the State Fund in the investigation of claims, the presentation of all material and
facts for the consideration and determination thereof, and shall keep a record of

the accidents of the group.

(2) The group manager shall be responsible for instruction of all members in the

maintenance of proper payroll and other records which may reflect in any way

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

upon wage expenditures, shall assist the State Fund in securing true and
accurate payroll records and reports wherever possible, and shall also assist the
State Fund in the prompt collection of premiums, and shall keep a record of the

estimated and earned premiums of the group.

(3) The group manager shall be responsible for insuring that all applications for
insurance submitted on behalf of prospective members shall be correctly and

fully completed, containing all information required by the State Fund.

(4) The group manager shall be the representative of the group in dealing with
the State Fund and with the individual members of the group. The group

manager shall see that the provisions of the group ftites operating guidelines

are earried-eut-followed by the group’s membership.

Term. Once appointed by the executive committee of the group and approved
by the State Fund, the group manager shall act in that capacity for the
duration of Group Year in which they are appointed, together with four (4)

subsequent group years or until such time as they are removed from their

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

position, either by the State Fund or at the behest of a vote of the executive
committee. If, at the end of their term, the executive committee votes to
retain the services of the same group manager for an additional term,
nothing in these instant rules prohibits a group manager from being

appointed to multiple consecutive terms.

(e) Service Charges. The group manager may be remunerated by the group
members as may be agreed upon by the executive committee of the group,
but in no instance shall such remuneration be in excess of the maximum

amounts provided for by the Safety Group’s

Operating Guidelines, as adopted by the Commissioners of the State Fund. All
ordinary expenses of the group shall be borne by the group manager and

shall be paid out of such remuneration.

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

Appendix B
Amendments to 12 NYCRR 451.9

(Items in BLUE and BOLD will be added to the text of the regulation, and items in RED
and CROSSED OUT will be deleted from the regulation)

The management of the State Insurance Fund is authorized and directed to formulate
such uniform regulations, also referred to as Operating Guidelines, as may be
necessary to assure the establishment and conduct of safety groups pursuant to this
Part. Copies of these regutations guidelines shall be filed with the secretary of the
board of commissioners and with the members of the subcommittee of the
commissioners on rating plans, and the regulations shall take effect 15 days after such
filing. (See Appendixes D-1 and D-2 of this Title for blank ferms-efrutesand
regtations Operating Guidelines for a safety trade association group and a safety
trade group.)

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



12 NYCRR 8451.5

8 451.5 Management of safety groups

(a) A safety group shall employ the services of a group manager for the purpose of
efficiently securing the benefits for which the group is established, and carrying out the
spirit and intent of the law

(b) Qualification and approval of group manager. The proposed group manager shall
submit, in writing, to the State Fund his qualifications for group management. No
group manager shall act in such capacity until the State Fund has—given—its

(c) Duties of group manager.

(1) The group manager shall promulgate rules and regulations (subject to the
approval of the State Fund) for establishing an accident-prevention program. He
shall diligently carry out such approved program and shall cooperate fully with the
State Fund in the investigation of claims, the presentation of all material and facts
for the consideration and determination thereof, and shall keep a record of the
accidents of the group.

(2) The group manager shall be responsible for instruction of all members in the
maintenance of proper payroll and other records which may reflect in any way
upon wage expenditures, shall assist the State Fund in securing true and accurate
payroll records and reports wherever possible, and shall also assist the State Fund
in the prompt collection of premiums, and shall keep a record of the estimated and
earned premiums of the group.

(3) The group manager shall be responsible for insuring that all applications for
insurance submitted on behalf of prospective members shall be correctly and fully
completed, containing all information required by the State Fund.

(4) The group manager shall be the representative of the group in dealing with
the State Fund and with the individual members of the group. The group manager
shall see that the provisions of the group rties are carried-out




12 NYCRR 8451.5

group and approved by the State Fund, the group manager shall act in that capacity for
the duration of Group Year in which they are appointed, together with four (4) subsequent
group vears or until such time as they are removed from their position, either by the
State Fund or at the behest of a vote of the executive committee. If, at the end of their
term, the executive committee votes to retain the services of the same group manager
for an additional term, nothing in these instant rules prohibits a group manager from
being appointed to multiple consecutive terms.

(e) Service Charges. The group manager may be remunerated by the group members
as may be agreed upon by the executive committee of the group, but in no instance shall
such remuneration be in excess of the maximum amounts provided for by the Safety
Group’s Operating Guidelines, as adopted by the Commissioners of the State Fund. All
ordinary expenses of the group shall be borne by the group manager and shall be paid
out of such remuneration.

Statutory Authority

Statutory Authority:
Workers’ Compensation Law, §83.

History

Added 451.5(c)(1), (2) on 12/01/84; amended 451.5 on 1/11/99; amended 451.5(d) on 03/02/00;
amended 451.5 on 11/01/04; amended 451.5(a) on [tbd]; amended 451.5(b) on [tbd]; amended 451.5(d)
on [tbd]; added 451.5(e) on [thd].



12 NYCRR 8451.9

8 451.9 Regulations for safety groups

The management of the State Insurance Fund is authorized and directed to formulate

such uniform regulations as may be necessary
to assure the establishment and conduct of safety groups pursuant to this Part. Copies
of these regulations shall be filed with the secretary of the board of

commissioners and with the members of the subcommittee of the commissioners on
rating plans, and the regulations shall take effect 15 days after such filing. (See

Appendixes D-1 and D-2 of this Title for blank ferms-ef+ulesanaregutations

for 2 safety trade association group and = safety trade group.)

Statutory Authority

Statutory Authority:
Workers’ Compensation Law, §83.

History

Amended 451.9 on 2/01/78;



LS

4

LY o

o AR N

| o™
hewetide I
o W

S o

Argpamce

KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

PROPOSED MOTION™*

The following is a procedural vote considered by the NYSIF Board of Commissioners at a meeting
held on Wednesday, September 18, 2024. A quorum was present throughout:

A motion was made that the minutes of the June 25, 2024 meeting be accepted
and filed as the official minutes of the Board of Commissioners.

Commissioner provided the motion to approve
Commissioner seconded the motion
YES NO ABSTAIN

Commissioner Delgado

Commissioner Kathuria

Commissioner Kessler

Commissioner Melvin

Commissioner Thomas

Commissioner Graham

Commissioner Ourlicht

Commissioner Dinallo

Chairman Theobalds

Michael Totaro
Assistant Secretary

*This proposed motion has not been acted upon. The proposed motion is being made available
pursuant to the Open Meetings Law 8103(e)

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

PROPOSED MOTION™*

The following is a procedural vote considered by the NYSIF Board of Commissioners at a meeting
held on Wednesday, September 18, 2024. A quorum was present throughout:

Motion to accept the written reports as submitted.

Commissioner provided the motion to approve
Commissioner seconded the motion
YES NO ABSTAIN

Commissioner Delgado

Commissioner Kathuria

Commissioner Melvin

Commissioner Kessler

Commissioner Thomas

Commissioner Graham

Commissioner Ourlicht

Commissioner Dinallo

Chairman Theobalds

Michael Totaro
Assistant Secretary

*This proposed motion has not been acted upon. The proposed motion is being made available
pursuant to the Open Meetings Law 8103(e)

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

PROPOSED MOTION™*

The following is a procedural vote considered by the NYSIF Board of Commissioners at a meeting
held on Wednesday, September 18, 2024. A quorum was present throughout:

A motion was made to proceed into Executive Session for a discussion
regarding matters leading to the appointment and/or employment of a
particular person or corporations - specifically this applies to MUNI asset
managers, investment staff, legal services related to real property and
workers’ compensation hearings, for a discussion regarding the proposed
acquisition of leased real property, for a discussion regarding a matter that if
disclosed could imperil the public safety, and legal advice.

Commissioner provided the motion to approve
Commissioner seconded the motion
YES NO ABSTAIN

Commissioner Delgado

Commissioner Kathuria

Commissioner Kessler

Commissioner Melvin

Commissioner Thomas

Commissioner Graham

Commissioner Ourlicht

Commissioner Dinallo

Chairman Theobalds

Michael Totaro
Assistant Secretary

*This proposed motion has not been acted upon. The proposed motion is being made available
pursuant to the Open Meetings Law 8103(e)

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR
PROPOSED MOTION™*

The following is a procedural vote considered by the NYSIF Board of Commissioners at a meeting
held on Wednesday, September 18, 2024. A quorum was present throughout:

A motion was made to adjourn the Board of Commissioners of the State
Insurance Fund regular monthly meeting.

Commissioner provided the motion to approve
Commissioner seconded the motion
YES NO ABSTAIN

Commissioner Delgado

Commissioner Kathuria

Commissioner Kessler

Commissioner Melvin

Commissioner Thomas

Commissioner Graham

Commissioner Ourlicht

Commissioner Dinallo

Chairman Theobalds

Michael Totaro
Assistant Secretary

*This proposed motion has not been acted upon. The proposed motion is being made available
pursuant to the Open Meetings Law 8103(e)

199 Church Street, New York, NY 10007 | nysif.com
24-



	1 - 2Q 2024 Financial Report.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Workers’ Compensation Fund�Q2 2024 Overview – Statutory Basis
	Workers’ Compensation Fund�Statutory Basis Results
	Slide Number 5
	Disability Benefits Fund�Q2 2024 Overview – Statutory Basis
	Disability Benefits Fund�Statutory Basis Results

	2 - PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE JUNE 25, 2024 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING.pdf
	HELD ON TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2024 AT 2:00 P.M.
	AT 199 CHURCH STREET, 12 FLOOR BOARDROOM, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10007;
	8 CORPORATE CENTER DRIVE, MELVILLE, NY 11747; and
	100 CHESTNUT STREET, ROCHESTER, NEW YORK 14604

	16c - Public - 2024 Proposed Amendments to 12 NYCRR 451.5.pdf
	16b - Public - 2024 Proposed Amendments to 12 NYCRR 451.5
	Proposed Amendments to 12 NYCRR 451.9 Regs for Safety Groups.pdf


